B-1045 1865
NORTHERN CENTRAL RR FREIGHT DEPOT (CALVERT STATION)
(Downtown Raquet Club)

Baltimore
Private

The Northern Central Railroad's Freight Depot (Calvert
Station), built in 1865, is a rare example of one phase in the
history of iron roof construction. Its 100 foot span and 75 foot
height mark a considerable advance over earlier iron roofs. Its
cast iron compression members are cruciform in section and longer
than earlier examples, which were of hollow, octagonal section,
more typical of the columns of cast iron buildings. The large
scale and simplicity of connections of the truss in this building
express a greater confidence in the use of what was at the time
a novel form of construction. Ten years later, the tricomposite
form was replaced by new designs which eliminated cast iron
entirely -- setting the stage for larger and longer spans.
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Probatly dating in part from 1855, when the Baltimore and Susquehans Rail-

road's Calvert St, Station was bersun one kElock to the south, this warehouse

building, originally associated with the station, has undergone numerous

alterations through the years, Is is built in two sections; an older, gab-
led main depot area, and the more recent, flat-roofed warehouse and office
section.

The massive depot area (appropriately 100' x 370') has a clear interior
span provided by an elaborate series of triangular Pratt trusses of wrought
iron and timber resting on brick piers, which support t~e major gable

of the roof, as well as the minor roof and runs its full length.

Three sets of railroad tracks veer off of the main track which runs in the

the cobbles of Guilford Ave, and enter the building through the main open-

ing at theMonument Street end, The three bay wide arcaded masonry wall

on this end is laid in brick in running tond. Originally, three stilted,

three-cantered brick arches resting on brick piers with fieldstone bases
sat below five smaller, round arched orenings of brick with flat stone
sills. Brick corbelline beneath the wooden zable end showe patchwork

where brackets may have at one time been positioned.

Early in the 1950's, the left and center arched were ripped out and re-

placed with a large, rectancular opening with reinforeed concrete frame

and lintel, Brick patchwork fills in the wall from the left side of the
opening to the end of the wall., The outline of the arched opening on the

right remains, but it has been filled with two rectangular,garage door-
openings above concrete bases. Above each of these is a elass block win-

dow; the remainder of the arched opening has been filled with brick,

The three, central, round arched windows have been bricked in and their sillg
sliced away, and the five, small windows above them have each been filled

with glass block with a semi-circle of brick patchwork above,

The Cuilford Avenue side demonstrates most clearly the originai appearance
of the structure; however, it,’' too, has undergone extensive alterations.

Nineteen bays of the building run parallel to Guilford; two angled bays

record how the railroad tracks veered off of Guilford at Centre St. to

enter the yard of the demolished (1948) Calvert St. Station, even though

the tracks themselves are no lonrer in existence. Resting on a rough,

lcw fieldstone base and stone belt course, projecting brick riers mark

the bays,

Originally, five three-centered arched openings occurréd at the second,
sixth, tenth, fourteenth, and eighteenth bays from the left of the nine-

teen' bay side; the opening in the eighteenth bay was much larger than the
others, Above each minor arch, three round arched windows set in brick

are now all bricked in, All other bsys have a set of two round arched

windewcopenings at the same level, with double hung windows of 6/6 lights

and wooden tympanums. 411 windows rest on flat stone ®ills which span

the bays, running from pier to pier,

Each bay now contains a rectangular, wooden garage door with St. Andrews
cross bracing, with a double row of eight fixed liehts running across

the top. Fach has been fitted with a reinforced concrste lintel. Brick
corbelling appears in each baey telcw several courses of brick laid in

Plemi sh bond directly below the eaves (21] other brickwork and patchwork
is in running bond),
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
The Guilford Avenue, eastern edge of the Mount Vernon neighborhood, be-
cause of its proximity to the Jones Falls, and tecause of the rail lines
which were put in the area about 1850, has been long associated . with the
handling of freight materials, The order of the area began to be most ser-
iously threatened in the decade following the Se~ond World War, as the im-
portance of rail transportation for freight and passengers slid into a
steady nationwide decline. The destruction of the Pennsylvaniz'Railroad'®
Calvert St. Station in 1948, which stood at the northeast corner of Cal-
vert and Frarnklin Streets,signalled the end of an era in Eastern Mt, Ver-
non,
The only railroad structure which survives and serves to identify the for-
mer function of the area is the freight depot. Dating in part from the
1850's, the evolution of the forms of its uses are recorded in the walls,
It is the largest, covered, clear-span space in the entire Mt, Vernon
neighborhood, and achieves that distinction with an elaborate structural
system which marks the mid-19th century transition from wood to all iron.
forms in large scale building projects., This archaic system is still in
sound condition:. Numerous schemes have been offered for the adaptive
re-use of the now vacant structure, which would take full advantage of the
kind cf space that the structure provides. Because it is the last of a
type of building, with a unique structural’ system still : +act, and be-
cause it offere a much needed kind of space to a densely built area, the
toundaries of the District should be extended to mark its significance.
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PSs - 709



to k5

8o -

OGRAPHICAL DATA

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES

DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY 0 DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY
R OF LESS THAN TEN ACRES
GORMER LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE LONGITUDE
Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds
NW e ] - o . - [+] . - o " -
NE o ' - o ' "
SE L] r - o ] L]
W o ] [] o " -

APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY:

Acreage Justification:

MAME AND TITLE:

ORGANIZATION

VMISSION FOR HISTORICAL .

DATE

STREECARbINUme sRR AL PRESERVATION

R¢

aitPer Sown:l Calvert St
Baliimore, Md. 21202

STATE

“~Jgtate Liaison Officer Review:

(Office Use Only)

National [] State [] Local

Significance of this property is:

O

Signature

23S

el

SNOITLONYLSNI



Describe the precent and original physieal appearance
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_(cont'd)

The profile of the minor rable reveals a series of lowered vents set into the ac-
bestos shinples side walls, The two angled bays have stone bases and the same belt
course, One doutle hune window with A4/6 lights are set in each bay, A string course
of st-ne rums above tlese, and the original double sets of rcund arched windovs

are now partially bricked in to hold smaller, rectangular windows with 6/6 1lights,
The Cerntre Street end of the building has beep wholly but neatlr altered and is

a product of the 1950's, A concrete bare evens cut the clope of the street and
supports walls of hard-finished brick, Squere window openings set in smooth stcne
frames are filled with multi-light, horizontally hinred casements set in steel
sashes, They are arranzed across the facade in arranped across the facade in irreg-
ular groupings of one, two and three windows, A double wooden door on the left side
has a transom which is one of these windows set at the same level., Above the door,
the aluminum letters " alve t Static " (Calvert Station) remain to identify the
tuildirg.

A wide stone belt course tovs the hardened trick zbove the windows, Above the belt
course, the older building remains, It is broken into five irregular bays, div-
ided by both piers, which are symmetrical about the center, - The largest, central
bey 4e fenestrated like the Monument Street, upper facade with a row of five smal-
ler windows above a row of three larger windows, The bays immediately flanking the
central one each hold a single round arched window of the same size and at the same
.level of the three in the centrzl bay, The two end bays hold windows the size

of the five, small,higher windows, All of these openings have flat stone sills

with round headed brick arch lintels 3, and are filled with glass block topped with
semi-circular brick patchwork, Brick corbelling runs teneath-the wooden eable end,
- Probatly constructed some time in the 1890's, the *wo story, brick office section
 adjoins this end of the btuilding on the left. The four Centre Street bays are de-
fined by five crojecting brick niers which rise from the ground to support a wide
metal cornice, caooed with clay tiles, The left bay holds a wooden door with transom
and side lights, above- which is a single doutle hung window. All of the sash is
missing from all of the first and second floor windows, although the double frames
remain, The two central bays have double sets of identical windows 3t each floors.
A1l windows have flat stone eills and flat iron lintels with metal rosette tolts.
Three basement window openirgs in the two central bays are rramed in brick and have
fixed windows of eight lighis each, The two bays which continue down the alley cide
each contain two of the same, identically detailed windows at each floor.

Stretching behind the offices along Hunter Alley is a high, 13 bay long covered load-
ing building, with ten garace door openings, also dating frem the 1890's. Behind
this is a low seven bay long structure with six garage doors of more recent vin-
tage, All doorways have been fitted with retractable, corrupted steel doors, They
are framed bty rdnforced concrete piers and lintels set into the brick and restine

on a concrete base, A ritbed metal awning is suspended above the doors from metal
rods hooked inte each of the brick nriers which define the kays. Each bay is fitted
with a tripartite window on the second level, which have flat stone sills and iron
lintels with tolt rosettes. Al windows are {owble hung with 2/2 liphts and have
wooden frames and sash., The brick wall above is tonped with the same metal cornice
and clayv tile.

The seven btay lonr addition is built entirelv of trick and has a metal cornice aton
a low brick paravet., There are six esarare door-oreninrs, FExtending east, flush
with the Monument Strect end of the derot, a single sclid brick bay with cornice
return fronts en Monument St,
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HINAME

HISTORIC

Northern Central Railroad Baltimore Freight Shed

AND/OR COMMON
Downtown Racquet Club
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ERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—PREHISTORIC ~ _ARCHEULUGY-PREHISTORIC ~ _COMMUNITY PLANNING — LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE ~ __RELIGION
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—1600-1699 XaRcHITECTURE —EDUCATION —MILITARY __SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—1700-1799 _ART X ENGINEERING —Music — THEATER
X 1800-1899 _COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  __PHILOSOPHY X TRANSPORTATION
—1900- __COMMUNICATIONS X \NpusTRY —POLITICS/GOVERNMENT —OTHER (SPECIFY)
—INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES 1865 BUILDER/ARCHITECT S.H. & J.F. Adams

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Northern Central Railroad's Freight Depot (Calvert Station),
built in 1865, is a rare example of one phase in the history of iron
roof construction. Its 100 foot span and 75 foot height mark a con-
siderable advance over earlier iron roofs. Its cast iron compression
members are cruciform in section and longer than earlier examples,
which were of hollow, octagonal section, more typical of the columns
of cast iron buildings The large scale and simplicity of connections
of the truss in this building express a greater confidence in the use
of what was at the time a novel form of construction. Ten years later,
the tricomposite form was replaced by new designs which eliminated cast
iron entirely -- setting the stage for larger and longer spans

Historical background:

The Northern Central Railroad was the principal link between the
Pennsylvania Railroad and the port of Baltimore. It allowed Baltimore's
imports access to the northeast by connecting to the Penn RR lines at
Harrisburg. With the completion of the Baltimore § Potomac Railroad from
Baltimore to Washington, the Northern Central became the vital link in
the Penn RR's southern division.

Northern Central built the freight depot building at Calvert and
Centre Streets in 1865 as part of their Calvert Station complex. A num-
ber of Baltimore construction companies took part in the building of
the depot, as noted in an April 20, 1865 Baltimore American article:

"This enterprising railway company... may now pride itself upon having
the largest and probably the best railway depot building in the United
States. This immense and imposing structure...is really worthy of an
inspection on the progress of the mechanic arts. The building in
length measures 382 feet, with a width of 150, and nearly one million
bricks were used in its construction. The principal contractors were
Messrs. S.H. and J.F. Adams, favorably known in Baltimore as experi-
enced builders, and all interested say that they have done full jus-
tice to their contract. The height of the structure from the founda-
tion to the apex of the roof is 75 feet, and whilst the interior has
a light appearance, it is quite apparent that it possesses unusual

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
(continued)
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North Central Railroad Baltimore Freight Station
8) Historical Significance
Page 2

strength, and will stand the wear and tear of years. The foundation
and part of the superstructure is of rough stone work, done by Messrs.
Oliver and Fleming, and has been pronounced the best job of the kind
in the city... The first story or basement occupies the entire space
of the lot, and will be used for the reception or delivery of goods.
The floors on each side of the wagon way will be laid with concrete so
as to render them perfectly dry. The gas fixtures, whichaare upon the
most approved plan were put up by Mr. Charles Kaffinski... The roof is
well covered with slate as a protection against fire, and light is ad-
mitted from each side by two rows of sash casements 112 in number...
The bricklayers work was done by Mr. William Fowler and the iron work
by Hayward, Bartlett § Company. The main story is occupied by various
lines of tracking, which are sufficient in extent to accommodate at
least one hundred cars, with ample space for rooms for the agent and
clerks of the freight department... The main front upon Centre street
is of the finest brick work, and contains two immense doorways, in
which there is ample space for vehicles and pedestrians to pass in and
out; whilst on the southwest corner is a commodious office for the ac-
commotation of Mr. William Brown, freight agent, and his corps of in-
defatigable clerks."

In 1946 the facade of the freight shed was altered as part of its
transformation into a passenger terminal following the destruction of
the old Calvert Station passenger terminal to make way for the new Sun-
papers building. Derelict in 1976, the depot has been renovated as a
private racquet sports club. Although some changes have been made to
the exterior and the interior, which now includes a health club, track,
courts, offices and a restaurant, the roof system has been left unchanged
and exposed above the tennis courts.
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Northern Central Railroad's Freight Depot (Calvert Station, built in 1865, is a rare example of one phase in the:
itory of iron roof construction. Its 100 foot span and 76 foot height mark a considerable advance over earlier iron
»fs. Its cast iron compression members are cruciform in section and longer than earlier examples, which were of hollow,
:agonal section, more typical of the columns of cast iron buildings. The large scale and simplicity of connections

the truss in this bulldlng express a greater confidence in the use of what was at the time a novel form of construction,
i i imi d cast iron entirely--setting the stage
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